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1. Benkennie — acknowledgement of country

This is a good spot to look east towards the Nepaaer and acknowledge the
traditional owners of the land — the Aboriginal peowho have lived on this land
since the Dreamtime.

The Camden district sits at the confluence of bauied between Aboriginal groups,
although details of the boundaries are contestde .groups include the Gundungarra
to the west and south, the Dharawal to the soufleast, and the Dharuk to the north.
The relationship of the Dharawal people with CamBark has continued for over
200 years since the land grant to John Macarthi805.

They called this area '‘Benkennie' or 'Belgennyamirgg 'dry land'. The people
belonged to the land and it provided all their reediuding food, water, shelter and
medicines. The vegetation along the river and sumtling areas was good for
hunting, fishing and camping. Despite the losdhefrtland for traditional living,
descendants of the local Aboriginal people contitouése in the area.

2. Cowpastures, the Home Farm and Flying King

This is the grave of Flying King, a thoroughbredetaorse stallion owned by Francis
and George Macarthur-Onslow. There's more abouvitearthur horses later, but
firstly some information on early European activitythe area.

In 1795 a large herd of wild cattle was found gngabn this side of the Nepean River,
thriving without human help. They were the progehywo bulls and four cows that
had wandered off from Sydney Cove in 1788. Thishy the district became known
as 'the Cowpastures', and it was here that Johafthar was granted 5,000 acres of
land in 1805.

Macarthur's grant, initially known as Camden aridrlas Camden Park, remained
with the family for nearly 170 years. As the es@ttew, much of the land was
tenanted but the family retained portions for tlwein use, including the ‘Home
Farm'. What we now call 'Belgenny Farm' was thereeof the Home Farm.

From the mid 1830s the family lived at Camden Rdokise about 2km away. In the
English tradition of great country houses, the Hdtaem supplied them with fresh
produce and directly involved them in farming inde@ently of their many tenant
farmers on the wider estate.
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3. The granary

The granary was completed in 1890 as a 'corn aptement shed' for Camden Park.
Implements such as ploughs were housed on the dftaor while corn and other
livestock feeds were stored above. The slated watigided ventilation to keep the
corn dry, and tin wrapped around the shed's ptsgped rats and mice from
climbing up to the grain.

In the early 1900s the men on Camden Park brohgh¢drs of corn here in horse-
drawn tip drays. The women removed the husks figercorn and then stripped the
grain from the ears of corn. This was called 'hagland shelling'. Vic Boardman
recalls the activities ....

'they had tip drays, they'd send the men down talpeiicobs off. They'd tip it in
Belgenny's there. The ladies would husk while ith& Were at school, or little kids
would play in the corn dust or on the dirt flodnetkids would play on the dirt and the
corn husks and things. They'd shell the corn ariddgm in lofts up thete

The granary is now a function centre that is popidawedding receptions.

4. Vineyard

500 grape vines in five varieties were planted herecent times to commemorate
one of the first commercial vineyards in Austraéatablished on the Camden estate
in 1820. On the right are vines grown in the tiad&l method of the early I800's and
on the left are vines on the modern trellis system.

This was not originally a vineyard site. It waseeedpark around 1840 and then
became horse yards and paddocks. The first vinayasdocated south of here.

In 1830 a second vineyard of 9 hectares was plantadh alluvial soil by the river
and in 1840 a third vineyard was planted soutthef@Gamden Park House close to the
winery. William Macarthur, son of John, is creditedh the work on the vineyards.
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5. The dovecote

A dovecote is the name for a structure to housequig. This dovecote is the
surviving one of two built on the farm by the Mabars in what was the farm's horse
yards so pigeons could eat grain that fell fromfé®al troughs, to stop a build-up of
rats and mice. Pigeons were also kept for the tablether words, for eating.

The use of natural tree trunks in the construabibtine dovecote is typical of the
Gardenesque, a rustic style popular in England tteerearly 1800s. It is just a myth
that the Macarthurs used pigeons to send messagesdn their farms at Parramatta
and Camden.

The horse yards on this site housed stallionswiea¢ bred on Camden Park or
purchased. They included the Suffolk Punch whidmi€nglish breed of draft horse
used to haul heavy loads or pull ploughs and alyecultural implements.

6. Creamery and former coach house

This building was constructed in the 1820s as altb@use for horse-drawn vehicles.
As part of the Macarthurs' expansion of dairy paun in the 1890s, it was
converted into a creamery in 1898 by adding an ugjpeey and an elevated water
tank. It became one of four creameries on theestat

At the creamery, milk was separated into creams&ird milk. Cans of milk were
hauled to the top floor from carts parked directhgderneath. The milk was tipped
into a vat and flowed into a machine called a 's#pa. At the Belgenny creamery
there was a single separator driven by a steanmength its boiler and chimney. The
cream was taken to Menangle Central Creamery solaeor made into butter. The
skim milk was fed to pigs on Camden Park.

Within two decades this creamery, along with otnenefrigerated creameries,
became obsolete when most milk was separated s fand the cream delivered to
refrigerated butter factories. The second storey eaamnolished in the 1930s and the
building became a farm shed. The shell of the sgstorey was reinstated in the
1980s but the creamery interior has not been ratete
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7. The old oak tree

This is reputed to be the oldest Oak tree in Aliatrtt was supposedly grown from
an acorn picked up on one of the English Royaltestd he tree has stood at the
centre of Camden Park's 'Home Farm’, now calleld&@ay’, for most of the estate's
lifetime and has witnessed remarkable changes28@ears or so.

Initially Camden Park ran sheep and cattle tengecbbvict shepherds and
stockkeepers. In 1820 its first vineyard was egthbt and river flats were cleared to
grow wheat. The famous Macarthur merinos were stee's mainstay until they
were moved to better sheep country near Taraltjaeid840s.

In the 1860s a disease called 'rust’ wiped out tyreauction and in the 1870s the
pest Phylloxera wiped out wine production. By tl880s dairying was the mainstay
of the estate and by 1965 Camden Park was thesladlgey in Australia.

Camden Park Estate changed ownership in 1973 and3NV Government purchased
part of it in 1984. About 400 hectares around Camféiérk House was not part of the
Estate and continues to be owned by descendadthafand Elizabeth Macarthur.
This old oak tree has stood through it all.

8. Belgenny cottages

There are two cottages in this complex. The cotthgefaces west towards the
stables was built by Elizabeth Macarthur in 1815evher husband John was in
England.

In 1821 a second cottage, designed by architectyH@ichen, was built facing east
and it became the main cottage at that time, whedevest-facing cottage possibly
served as a kitchen. By about 1860 the two cottages joined by a new wing.
Termite damage in the 1880s led to demolition eféhst-facing cottage which was
replaced about 1900 by the cottage that standy.toda

Elizabeth Macarthur stayed at Belgenny Cottageesrvisits to Camden and it was
here that William and James Macarthur lived fror88ntil Camden Park House
was completed in 1835. Their father John, who i kvewn for his role in the
development of Australia's Merino wool industry dmsl association with the 'rum
rebellion’, died here in 1834.

Since then the cottages have been used in variays, wuch as a residence for the
farm manager and other employees, and as an office.
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9. Courtyard and bell

The farm's bell signalled the start and end of waekiods and meal breaks for farm
employees, and it could be heard a fair distanayaw

The bell originally hung near the smokehouse ur@&85 when it fell on the head of a
farm worker named William Arthur Channell as heg#@nand he died as a result. A
new brick bell mount was built here in the courtiyas a memorial to him. It also
holds a plaque honouring Belgenny Farm with thedRéyistralian Institute of
Architects' Francis Greenway Restoration Awardlfegs.

This courtyard was a busy thoroughfare for Camdak'® Home Farm in the 1800s
and the first half of the 1900s. Until the 1980s thain entrance was beside the
Community Hall and it led directly into the courtgaThere was a constant stream of
workers, horse-drawn vehicles and later, motoralelj coming and going.

With the advent of tractors and other motor velsickelarge red fuel bowser stood
beside the bell mount.

10. Community Hall

The Community Hall was built in 1937 as a recraatall for employees of Camden
Park estate and their families. The Macarthur famampany gave £100 for
materials, with all construction undertaken by emgpks. The hall was one of the last
buildings erected on the Home Farm, now called &shy, under Macarthur
ownership.

The hall was used regularly for dances, partiesraodes. At one stage there was a
movie shown here every fortnight, with a dance lweldhe week in-between.

The hall played an important part in social life@amden Park. This was in the days
before television and before it was common for g¥amily to own a car. That's why
these functions were well attended by the largeberrof estate workers and their
families. It is where many young men and womert firet and later married.

The hall is now used as an education centre favdathildren visiting Belgenny.
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11. Stables

The main stables were built in the 1820s and amngnthe oldest surviving farm
buildings in Australia. They consist of a timbeaifre clad with ironbark
weatherboards cut by hand on the farm. Close examimshows that fasteners
include wooden pegs and hand-made nails.

The roof was originally made of hardwood shinglasthese were covered in
corrugated iron when the stables, barn, store ead $hed were renovated to form
one long, continuous building in the 1890s. Thelggboof vents are a distinctive
feature of the design.

Horses were used on the farm for transport andaivenpower to pull ploughs,
wagons and other machinery. In 1899 there werehbiges on Camden Park and in
1911 there were 179.

Although the Macarthurs used the latest technolbgyses remained the powerhouse
of the farm until the 1930s. They particularly usadfolk Punch draught horses for
farm work, and they bred these on the farm, atgiosng stallions imported from
England. In 1909 a Clydesdale stallion was alsclmased.

From the 1950s the stables and nearby buildings itde used because the focus of
activity on Camden Park became centred aroundhtige lautomated dairy called 'the
Rotolactor' which was at Menangle.

12. Engine room and mill

As larger machinery became essential on the fdrenstables were extended to the
south west about 1900. This extension is the engiom which links the once
separate stables and mill. The engine room proldatalged steam, diesel and petrol
engines that drove chaff cutters and other farmhinacy.

To the right of the engine room is the mill. It Hheee floors which suggests it was
originally built as a flour mill. This makes goodrse because Camden Park was like
a small town, with large numbers of employees &ed families living on the estate.
Wheat could be brought here to be ground into ftouneet the needs of the
Macarthurs and their employees.

The estate had to be self-sufficient and this iy thle Home Farm, now called
Belgenny, included a blacksmith's shop, wheelwsgiop, pit saw, carpentry shop,
engine room, shearing shed, slaughterhouse, crgamdrflour mill.
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13. Blacksmith's shop

The blacksmith's shop was built in 1937 using sofitee material from the original
shop which was located on the site of the communat It was moved when the hall
was built.

In earlier days the blacksmith's shop was a busgepnd in some ways it was the
nerve centre of the farm. Blacksmiths performed yressential, skilled tasks. As
well as making horse shoes and shoeing horsesribdg, sharpened and repaired
hand tools and farm equipment. They also made Jaitgges, bolts, spikes, axles,
wheels, parts of ploughs, and the metal parts ofdss for horses and bullocks. They
were multi-skilled and worked in brass and coppewall as iron.

Inside there is a forge with a hand-pumped belltmasring the fire to a high enough
temperature to heat iron until it glows red-hoitstan be bent and shaped. There is
an anvil on which to hammer metal objects, andna@s@ne water trough to cool
them down.

14. Fuel shed

The fuel shed was built about 1939 when tractodsaher motor vehicles had largely
taken over from horses on the farm. There was noeed to store petrol and diesel in
44 gallon drums to refuel tractors and farm velsicte! gallons is just over 200 litres.

This was in the days before forklifts and bulk Harglequipment. The heavy drums
of fuel were rolled off the delivery truck onto tp&atform of the fuel shed which was
the same height as the truck's tray. This madasiee to unload the drums without
putting them on the ground or lifting them.

Vehicles could then be refuelled at the shed bygiaihand pump put into a drum of
fuel. Later a large, elevated fuel tank was insththn the southern end of the granary
to avoid the need to handle heavy fuel drums amajpploly hand.

The fuel shed is now used for sheep shearing damadioss and other activities at
open days.
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15. Slaughterhouse

There are two structures in one here. The slaugbise is on the left and you can see
some of its original roof of wooden shingles. Shemtle and pigs were slaughtered
here to fed the Macarthurs, their employees andigsnThe grooved drains in the
stone floor reflect the building's function.

Until refrigeration became available in the 19(0ssh meat was eaten in the days
following slaughter and the remainder was saltestdp it going rotten when kept for
longer periods. Some meat was smoked and drideeisrhokehouse which is a later
stop on the tour.

At some stage the building was extended to thd,rigborporating the earlier
slaughterhouse. In later years it was used adbbedta working horses and finally as
a carpenter's shop with a diesel engine drivingclar saw.

The stone-flagged floor in the right-hand part oilding was uncovered by
archaeological investigation. It belongs to aniegrlnknown building.

16. Shearing shed and the Macarthur Merinos

Originally this building was a stable for workingrses but was converted into a
shearing shed in the 1930s. The hardwood slabsi@uated on ironbark posts and
the gap under the eaves provides ventilation.

Some of the famous Macarthur Merino sheep have sleem here. When John
Macarthur was in England in 1801 to face a Courttiia(which did not proceed), he
promoted the colonial wool industry to the Britgtvernment and returned in 1805
with a commission from Lord Camden to develop tigustry in New South Wales.

John Macarthur first exported wool to England i©8&nd wool production became
the mainstay of the Camden estate. While he wascexi England from 1809 to
1817 his wife Elizabeth took control of sheep bregdThe Macarthurs were among
the first to export quality wool in commercial quidies. In 1822 they exported
6,800kg of wool to England.

Wool production declined at Camden in the 1840sthadlock was moved to better
sheep country on the family property at Taralgdet_part of the flock was moved to
Victoria under changed ownership. There the breasl kept pure and in 1880 part of
the flock was returned to Camden. All of the Mergieep on Belgenny Farm today
are descended from those animals.
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17. Carpenter's shop

The Carpenter's shop was possibly built in the $8Bl@te the decorative barge
boards (these are the timber boards on the ousitie top, on the front and back of
the building). They are similar to those on thengrg, suggesting the building was
constructed by James English and sons who werddrasiand carpenters on Camden
Park at that time.

The narrow doors and poorly lit interior indicalbe touilding may have been used for
something else before becoming the carpenter's $texp English, a carpenter at
Camden Park for many years, kept his tools andoagemt in the carpenter's shop.
One of his many jobs was to repair furniture arfteotvooden items brought to him
by the Macarthurs.

Annette Macarthur-Onslow recalls that broken chairg other items lined the walls
and there was always a pot of aromatic glue bugldima spirit flame.

18. Well

The well has been covered for safety reasons.dthwdt in 1895 to provide water for
the farm.

Before the well was constructed, water was brotrginh the river by horse and cart
for domestic use in the nearby cottages and fadmmother livestock, steam engines
and general farm use.

19. Pigsties

This building consists of pigsties at the southend, with sheds and garages on the
north.

The Camden Park piggery was located elsewhereeoedtiate and this building was
probably never a full scale piggery. It was mokelly used as short-term holding
pens for pigs brought here for slaughter in thagiéerhouse.
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20. Smokehouse

The smokehouse was built in the 1830s or 184@s altrare, surviving example of a
smokehouse from the colonial era.

The smokehouse was used to smoke pork and othétongeserve it in the days
before refrigeration. Salting and smoking weretti)@ methods available to stop meat
from going rotten so it could be eaten long aftémels had been slaughtered.

The smokehouse reminds us of how self sufficieatGamden Park estate was. With
its combination of slaughterhouse, smokehouse lama/hole range of other facilities
and tradesmen such as blacksmiths and carpertersstate could meet most of the

day to day needs of the Macarthurs, their numeeoysloyees and families living on

the estate.

The smokehouse was originally free standing, priyiareduce the fire hazard, but
was joined to the creamery building by the 186@snfer employees remember beef,
mutton and pork hanging in the smokehouse to presar‘cure’ it, and a fire burning
there all day. The inside of the smokehouse waskbleed from the smoke.

21. Horse works

Here is a great example of technology from the $88@at was used on Camden Park.
It literally shows horse power in action. A horsasiarnessed to a wooden pole and
walked round and round in a circle. This turnedrgé metal wheel that was
connected via a drive shaft to a gear box whiclspdrive pulley at a higher speed.
This combination of machinery was called a 'horseka/.

The pulley was connected by a belt to the chatiecuibat you see here. The chaff
cutter was used to chop hay into smaller piecé®tied to horses. In 1899 there were
118 horses on Camden Park so feeding them wagedad important job because
horses did all the work that tractors and otheiicle do on farms today.
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22. Reception cottage

You have almost finished your walking tour of Belgg Farm and are heading back
to the office.

The office building was formerly a duplex of twouses joined together in the
middle, each self-contained. These two residenezs part of over 50 cottages
provided on the Camden Park estate for workergdtagidfamilies.

For much of the estate's history, most of those wbrked on the estate also lived on
it. They were part of a self-sufficient communithavliived, worked and socialised
here. Some met future partners in the estate's ComyrHall during social

functions.

Before the duplex was converted to an office tls&dences were occupied by former
employees or their spouses who had been giveteli@ncy by the Macarthurs. The
office therefore reminds us of the rich social drigtof Camden Park and the
generosity of the Macarthur family towards thoseowlorked for them. [150 words]

Credits

Script writer:  Brian Walsh
Narrator: Garth Russell
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Further information/contact details

To obtain further information about the history of Belgenny Farm, open days and
bookings for weddings and other functions:

web: www.belgennyfarm.com.au
phone: (02) 4655 9651
fax: (02) 4655 9657
email: belgenny@dpi.nsw.gov.au

postal: PMB 8, Camden NSW 2570
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